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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The governors who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their report
with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 August 2024. The governors have adopted the
provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland {FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019) and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

The annual report serves the purposes of both a governors' report and a directors’ report under company law.

The academy trust operates an academy for pupils aged 5 to 11 serving a catchment area in South Herefordshire. It
has a pupil capacity of 84. Number on roll was 76 in the school census on October 2023.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, in particular, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school offering a broad
range of curriculum of pupils of different abilities.

The aims of the Academy during the period ended 31 August 2024 are summarised below:

- to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils

- to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including extra-curricular activities

- to develop students as more effective learners

- to develop the Academy sites so that it enables students to achieve their full potential

- to ensure that every child enjoys the same high-quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care

- to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under
continual review

- to provide value for money for the funds expended

- to fulfil the role of a teaching school

- to develop greater coherence, clarity and effectiveness in school systems

- to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements

to develop the Academy's capacity to manage change, and

to conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards and integrity, probity and openness.

We aim to get the best for, and from, each child. We intend to enable each child to realise his or her full academic,
creative and physical potential and to develop positive social and moral values. Our Academy continues to maintain
and manage a school with a designated Church of England religious character, arranging for religious education and
daily acts of worship. Our Academy is a community in which children, staff and parents should be part of a happy
and caring environment. At Llangrove CE Academy, our vision is to nurture children, enabling them to forge healthy
relationships with peers, teachers and school staff. We see this as essential to children's positive experience of
school and their emotional development; helping them grow and flourish, preparing them to move forwards in
confidence and hope, with dreams of a bright future in modern-day Britain and beyond.

At Llangrove CE Academy, our Roots are in the values of faith and knowledge that enrich life's journey. We learn
about connecting with each other through valuing the world we share and nurturing our ; working together as a
family to achieve our best, learning with confidence to fulfil our dreams.

"Keep your roots deep in Him and your lives built on Him." - Colossians 2:7.

These foundations provide stability from which our fruit is expressed. We believe that we are known and
characterised by the children we serve. The children are also known by their fruit: expressing who they are as
individuals, contributing to communities and the wider society in which they are a part, with dreams of a bright
future in modern-day Britain and beyond.
"A tree is known by the kind of fruit it bears.” - Matthew 12:33
At Llangrove CE Academy we aim for our fruit to be born through:
Achievement Creativity Opportunity Resilience Nurture Service

Page 3



Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The main objectives for the year and strategies for achieving them are contained in the school's Strategic
Development Plan.

Public benefit

We have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit when
reviewing our aims and objectives. All our charitable activities are undertaken to further our charitable purposes for
the public benefit.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

Llangrove CE Academy again continues to increase in pupil numbers. A successful Ofsted inspection tool place in
June 2022; achieving GOOD. The opening statement from OFSTED stated - "Llangrove CE Academy welcomes
everyone. Pupils feel safe, enjoy life at school and thrive. The school is very much part of the local community.
Parents and carers share their children's enthusiasm for the education provided. They value how well staff care for
pupils and keep in touch with families.”

We are also very proud and thrilled that Llangrove CE Academy achieved Outstanding in our SIAMS inspection in
November 2017. We are extremely proud of the children's achievements and felt that the report reflected our caring
and nurturing school ethos. The full report is available on the school website.

Key performance indicators :

The quality of education: Good
Behaviour and attitudes: Good
Personal development: Good
Leadership and management: Good
Early years provision: Good

Pupil numbers have increased again this year. As funding is based on pupil numbers this is a key performance
indicator.

Pupil numbers for 23/24 increased to 80 for the October 2023 Census.

Pupil attendance is another indicator used to determine performance. During the year 23/24 the overall percentage
attendance rate was 94.66%, which is higher than the National Average for state funded.

Llangrove CE Academy Results 2024

Reception/EYFS Data

% of children achieving a ‘good level of development’ 67%
Phonic Screening

Year 1 Phonic Screening 80%
Year 2 Phonic Screening retakes 33%

IDSR Statement:
There were 10 pupils who were eligible for the phonics screening check in Year 1 in 2024; all of them sat
the check and 2 pupils did not meet the phonics expected standard.
There were 3 pupils who were eligible for the phonics screening check in Year 2 in 2024; all of them sat the
check and 2 pupils did not meet the phonics expected standard.

MTC
All Year 4 pupils carried out the online Multiplication Check. There is no pass mark.
Average score was 20/25.

KS2 SATS
Expected &
Greater
Subject Depth Greater Depth
Reading 64% 21%
Writing 86% 21%
GPS 93% 43%
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Maths 64% 0%
Science 100% -

KS2 SATS were externally moderated by Herefordshire LA.

"Leaders have planned an ambitious and effective curriculum. Pupils learn and enjoy all the subjects in the national
curriculum.” - Ofsted June 2022.

We were delighted at Christmas to perform a live performance in Christ Church of our Nativity Christmas story. Due
to the increase in pupil numbers the Christmas productions were this year split into a Key Stage 1 production in the
school hall and a Key Stage 2 performance took place in the church.

We had a very busy Spring Term starting with our Year 6 class enjoying a trip to the Egypt Centre in Swansea as part
of their topic 'Egypt: land of the Pharaohs'. The children and staff had a very interesting time with the opportunity to
see fascinating genuine Egyptian Artefacts and watching the employees demonstrate live mummification.

In February Maple Class took part in Moving Targets at the Courtyard Theatre, Hereford. This was a wonderful
experience for the children they got to perform their dance on the stage in front of a packed audience. Their
performance was amazing and they worked so hard on it. All the children were wonderfully behaved and a credit to
Llangrove CE Academy.

In March Reception and Year 1 children had an exciting trip to Little Owls as part of their animal's topic linking to ‘on
the farm', exploring new life at Easter.

In the summer pupils from Year 6 across the HMFA schools have once again taken part in a residential trip to the
Oaker Wood activity centre. Where they experienced raft building, paintballing, quad biking and going to extreme
heights. It was an experience not to be missed!

At the end of the year Years 2, 3, 4 & 5 spent a fantastic day at St. Fagans, the National Welsh Museum of History.
This provided the children with a first hand experience of being in an Iron Age house, reinforcing their learning and
understanding of life in Britain ~ Stone Age to Iron Age topic. The children also visited the row of miners cottages
built to display different periods of history from 1805 - 1985. The members of staff commented on pupils’ behaviour,
level of interest, politeness and greeting and thanking them in Welsh. Diolch o galon Sain Ffagan!

As always we have fully appreciated our wonderful outside grounds, including a large field, Forest School area with
many trees and our own pond. Forest School sessions take place weekly, with classes participating half termly. We
have made full use of our outdoor play areas in our Daily Mile, weekly timetabled PE lessons as well as practising or
developing new skills in a range of sports during National Sports Week. A very successful sports day took place in July
when parents and carers were able to attend and celebrate the children’s sporting achievements, with refreshments
supplied by the PTFA.

The school location is also used effectively to enhance the curriculum as well as help the children develop their
understanding, appreciation and links to the community. Once again Oak Class children delivered Christmas post to
houses in the village.

PE Achievements & Performances 2023-24

School Games Mark Award Success

This year we have achieved the Platinum Award in the School Games - the highest accolade. The School Games Mark
is a government led award scheme to reward and recognise school engagement in the School Games against a
national benchmark and to celebrate keeping young people active. We are delighted to be recognised for this
success. Atong with submitting a case study of how we promote sixty active minutes at Llangrove CE Academy, we
had to maintain the Gold Award for four consecutive years.

Student Leadership
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The roles of 'Sports Crew' have now been adapted into 'Play Leaders’ as we felt that our older pupils in Year 6 didn't
always want to take leadership roles in sport. By changing the roles into 'Play' rather than ‘Sport’, we have evidenced
far more interested pupils who are keen to take part in organised physical activities at lunchtimes. We have pupils,
as young as Year 2, who thoroughly enjoy creating physical activities for their peers. We have four Play Leader bibs
and these are displayed on our Sports working wall. They are easily accessible for all our pupils and they have the
opportunity to take one when available. The role entitles them to choose equipment offered by staff and initiate
games, activities or assault courses for their peers. There is consistently a big uptake during lunchtimes.

Year 2 also showed their leadership skills by planning and leading an assault course especially designed for their new
peers joining them in September 2024.

Swimming

Our Years 6, 5, 4 and 3 received 5 hours swimming lessons at the Monmouth School Sports Club pool in  Monmouth.
Improving water confidence, technique and lifesaving skills, all our pupils were assessed and all achieved an STA
School Lessons Swimming certificate varying from levels 2 to Advanced Bronze. 100% of our Year 6 pupils will leave
Llangrove CE Academy able to swim 25 metres independently, using a recognised swimming stroke.

Dance

Years 4 and 5 performed a "Stars" themed dance at the Courtyard Theatre in Hereford. They performed twice on the
day to audiences of over four hundred people. It continues to be a popular event for many of our pupils. So much so,
that it is often mentioned as one of their highlights of their academic year. Years 2 and 3 devised and created 'a
dance to their science theme of magnets and got the opportunity to perform it to Years 4 and 5. Reception and Year
1 created an animal dance.

HMFA Sports League

Llangrove CE Academy competed in two HMFA Federation Sports League this academic year.

- Netball tournament for our Year 6 - held at Lord Scudamore Academy.

- Athletics - held at Hereford Leisure Centre. All pupils from Years 3-6, participated in at least one event. We
achieved fourth position out of seven schools, winning 2 Golds, Silvers and Bronze medals.

HMFA Girls Football - This Girl Can

All our girls in Years 3 and 4, travelled to Hereford to play a number of mixed football games with girls in the HMFA
Federation. Some of our pupils were inspired and considered joining local teams and creating a schoot lunchtime
club of their own.

Herefordshire School Games

Spring SG

Pupils in Year 4 participated in an Athletics event the Spring School Games at Hereford Leisure Centre. Objective
was to focus on the six sporting School Games Values of teamwork, passion, self-belief, determination, honesty and
respect.

Summer SG

Pupils in Year 2 participated in a multi-skills event in the Summer School Games at Hereford Leisure Centre.
Objective was to improve Personal Best at throwing, running and jumping. The six Sporting School Games Values
were also a focus.

Indoor Athletics
Year 6 travelled to Ledbury High School to participate in a competitive indoor event.

Netball
Year 3 travelled to John Kyrle High School, to compete in a competitive netball event.

Santa Dash

Last Christmas, all our pupils participated in a "Santa Dash” organised running event. We raised money for St.
Michael's Hospice, Hereford.

Quidditch
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Our Year 4 children travelled to see Year 6 at Mordiford Primary School, to receive a masterclass in Quidditch. They
spent an afternoon learning and developing their skills in the game. Its popularity inspired us to run a Quidditch
after-school club for the next academic year.

Intra- house competitions

Intra-house competitions have continued to thrive this academic year, with class house team competitions in
dodgeball, netball, hockey. European Football Championship - this year, to celebrate England getting through to the
European Football final, we organised a whole school football tournament.

School Sports Week

National Sports Week is celebrated at our school every year. An array of coaches and sport experts in various fields,
visit our school and provide our pupils with a masterclass in their field. This academic year, we had representatives
from Ross on Wye Tennis Club, Gloucester Rugby, ThreeDegreez Gymnastics from Hereford, a qualified Ballet
teacher, Street Dance with a coach from KICK group and a coaching session from our own Year 4's - fresh from their
Quidditch masterclass! All, have inspired our pupils to re-enact the activities during break and lunchtimes. And
more importantly further promoting an Active 60 minutes by joining a club outside of school.

Coaching
During the Autumn term, Years 4 and 5 received six hours of Tag Rugby of lessons from a Gloucester Rugby coach.

Tag Rugby

During the Spring term, Year 5 travelled to Bromyard Rugby Club and spent a day playing Tag rugby with three other
schools from the Federation. After a morning of skills and advice from coaches at Bromyard RFC, the class played a
few competitive games. They won one, drew two and lost one!

The Daily Mile/Running Riot

The Daily Mile continues to be an integral part of our typical school day. Every class has a timetabled fifteen minutes
every morning of every day. To keep the sessions fresh, we adapt depending on time of year and weather conditions.
We will often include FMS (Fundamental Movement Skills) at specific points of the laps. For example, complete a hop
scotch pattern, grapevine, duck walks, squat jumps, side steps, imaginary skipping rope, and so on. We have found
that the fundamental movement skills have definitely improved amongst our pupils. We will often turn our sessions
into a running and jumping events by providing obstacles such as tyres and hurdles. When turned into a 'Running
Riot', pupils move and jump to pop, dance and rock music.

Sports Day

Sports Day is our final sporting event of our academic year, with our pupils in all four houses competing for points to
win the Sports Day shield. It celebrates not only our pupils' performance in competition, but also our Sporting Values.
These values have been inspired by School Games. Prior to Sports Day, teachers discuss which pupils have
demonstrated the sporting values of passion, determination, teamwork, honesty, respect and self-belief throughout
the academic year. One child from each year group is chosen, After announcing to our families/parents/carers why
the pupils were chosen, they are presented with a Sports medal from our Chair of Governors.

Outdoor equipment
As mentioned by OFSTED in 2022, we have a vast range of play equipment and apparatus on our school premises.

Investment from the PE and Sport Premium funding into robust playtime equipment has made an immediate impact
on both playtimes and PE. The PE equipment is in good order, and staff and children feel that their play time has
been invested in. The school council meet to discuss equipment that can be purchased for playtime. The large
playground has been marked into a bright and inviting play environment and there are zones for different equipment
and different types of games.

Over the years, we have also invested in adding wooden climbing and balancing equipment that have been

purposefully, arranged in sequence to create an assault course. Pupils regularly use these on a daily basis, with
pupils devising all kinds of physical activities.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

"The school promotes physical activity particularly well. There is a good range of play equipment and the school
holds the Schools Games Mark at gold level. A high proportion of pupils take part in the wide range of after-school
clubs on offer."” - Ofsted, June 2022.

Financial review

Financial position

The majority of the Academy's income is obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the period ended 31 August 2024 and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE in accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charitiess (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance
is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned as defined in the Academy's
accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2024, total expenditure of £446,959 (2023: £452,495) was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DfES. The net incoming resources before transfers and revaluations for the year was £26,145
(2023: £7,289 net expenditure).

At 31 August 2024, the net book value of fixed assets was £48,909 (2023: £64,776) and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the
associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

Investment policy
The school will invest any surplus funds on deposit to ensure it maximises its return.

Reserves policy

The governors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Academy's
current level of reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds) is £40,760 (2023:
£32,595), all of which is free reserves. The level of general restricted reserves is £115,752 (2023: £77,410).

The Trust identifies the level of reserves as appropriate, adhering to best practice, to cover at least 3 months'
salary.

Future change/ uncertainty

Plans for future use of reserves is to support in-year deficit school budgets in the short term where particular
circumstances such as falling numbers, long term staff absences, removal of DfE support grants and unexpected
events have a detrimental impact.

Going concern

In these times of uncertainty with rising costs and unstable financial conditions on the financial viability of all
organisations it is important for management and the Governors to reassess whether the Trust will be a going
concern for at least 12 months from date of signing the financial statements. The academy must provide appropriate
evidence, including future budgets and forecasts which have been scrutinised and justified in detail to support their
assessment of going concern. This assessment should be approved by the Board.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 'Going concern' is an agenda item for each
Board meeting.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies.

National Tutoring Programme/Funding has not been used in 2023-24.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT
Fundraising
Fundraising initiatives for the School are:

APFS Christmas cards
- Tempest Photography
- 'Recycle with Michael' clothing collections.

These schemes provide a small income to the school. This year we were able to once again host the Llangrove May
Fayre, a community project which raises money for the school as well as Llangrove Leapfrogs, Llangrove Village Hall
and Christ Church. This year a percentage of funding was signposted to refurbish and upgrade the play area outside
of the village hall - a valuable facility for the Llangrove community which is used on a daily basis by pupils with their
parents/carers

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Governors consider that the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are:

- Meeting requisite standards of education for students in core subjects

Complying with legislative requirements regarding employment law, data protection, discrimination, Companies
House and HMRC, child protection, the Charity Commission and the National Curriculum.

Financial risk - not operating within its budget and running a deficit, changes in funding, inappropriate or
insufficient financial controls and systems, fraudulent activity and/or financial commitments made without
adequate authorisation.

- Operational risks resulting from inexperienced or inappropriate staff being employed and inaccurate, out of date
or inappropriate information.

The key controls used by the Academy include:
- Detailed terms of reference for all committees
Formal agendas for the Academy board and committees
Schemes of delegation and formal financial regulations
Formal written policies
Clear authorisation and approval levels
Policies and procedures required by law to protect the vulnerable

Financial - the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. The majority
of the Academy’s incoming resources was ultimately Government funded and whilst this level is expected to
continue, there is no assurance that Government policy remain the same or that public funding will continue at the
same levels or on the same terms.

Financial - The Board of Trustees recognises that the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit, which is sent out in
the notes to the financial statements, represents a significant potential liability. At this point in time the Academy is
able to meet the set LGPS annual contributions however, the Academy will continue to take into consideration the
uncertainty of future LGPS fund valuations.

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient
numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk, Trustees ensure that pupils success
and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the Trustees monitor and review
policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear

succession planning.

The Academy follows the STPCD and local policy guidelines. Any significant government legislative changes to
teachers pay and conditions will therefore have an impact.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

The School has agreed a Risk Management strategy, a risk register and a risk management plan. These have been
discussed by governors and include the financial risks to the school. The register and plan are constantly reviewed in
light of any new information and formally reviewed termly.

Llangrove Board opt for an annual bought-in internal audit service to provide independent assurance to the board
that its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating effectively, as required
by the Academy Trust Handbook. The function of the audit & risk committee is combined with the finance
committee who direct the trust's programme of internal scrutiny to ensure risks are being addressed appropriately.
This year two scopes of work were undertaken; Finance - Procurement Testing, Non-Finance - Website Review.

Plans for the future
Llangrove CE Academy will continue to strive to provide outstanding education and improve the levels of
performance of its pupils at all levels.

At Llangrove CE Academy we aim to deliver our vision through our core A.C.0.R.N.S values:
Achievement Creativity Opportunity Resilience Nurture Service

The Academy will continue to aim to attract high quality teachers and support staff in order to deliver its objectives.
Mr Ed Fox has been ECT mentor for our ECT teacher, Thea Harrhy, accessing support through Prince Henry's Teaching
School Hub for the Early Career Framework and ECTS.

Llangrove CE Academy will continue to work with partner schools in HMFA to improve the educational opportunities
for students in Herefordshire.

As part of the HMFA we are a partner teaching school with Worcester University the Academy and will continue to
support students completing initial teacher training if placed in our school. In Spring term 2023 a student teacher
was in placement in Acorn Class, supported by Mrs Rowson. This support will continue in 2024-2025.

The Key Initiatives for 2024/25 are:
To develop the quality of education and purpose-built provision to continually improve pupil progress and
- attainment.
Staff engage in professional development opportunities that enable then to flourish and demonstrate impact
- on teaching and learning, including ECT.
Developing new partnerships which enable our pupils and staff to engage and be part of the wider
- communities.
- To build a strong infrastructure which is financially viable and sustainable
Ensure that all children are protected from harm; both physically and emotionally, including further
developing a whole school approach to mental health, including preventative activity and promotion of good
- mental wellbeing and resilience among students and staff.
To implement the SIAMS revised framework, enabling pupils' and staff to flourish through the school's
- theologically rooted Christian vision.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
Memorandum and  Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Company was incorporated on the 17th December 2012 and converted from a Local Authority School to an
Academy Trust on the 1st February 2013.

The governors act as the trustees for the charitable activities of Llangrove CE Academy and are also the directors of
the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as Llangrove CE
Academy.

Details of the governors who served throughout the period except as noted are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

Governors' Indemnities

Governors benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense to cover the liability of the
governors which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust, provided that any
such insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the governors knew to be a
breach of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the governors in reckless disregard to whether it was a
breach of trust or breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of
any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the governors in their capacity as directors of the
Academy Trust.

The trust subscribe to the DFE's Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA) which is an alternative to commercial insurance
for the Academy Trust.

Principal activities
This is defined in the Articles of Association.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Method of Recruitment and appointment or Election of Governors

The new Articles of Association have been approved and were implemented in June 2024. As a church school
changing the AoA is a complicated matter and the process has taken considerable time which commenced back in
December 2021.

The following is defined in the Articles of Association:

MEMBERS
The Members of the Company shall comprise:

{a) the Diocesan Corporate Member;

{b) two persons appointed by the Diocesan Corporate Member (whether corporate or individual);

{c) the chairman of the Directors; and

(d) any person appointed under Article 15A, provided that at any time the minimum number of Members shall not
be less than three.

DIRECTORS

45. The number of Directors shall be not less than three, but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution)
shall not be subject to any maximum.

45A. All Directors upon their appointment or election and before exercising any duties as a Director shall give a
written undertaking to the Trustees and the Diocesan Corporate Member to uphold the Object of the Company.

46. Subject to Articles 48-49 and 53, the Company shall have the following Directors:

(a) No fewer than three Directors, appointed under Article 50 such that the number of Directors appointed under
this Article [and Article 46(b)] always outnumbers all other Directors by at least two ; and

(b) Not used;

(c) A minimum of 2 Parent Directors elected or appointed under Articles 53-56.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

50. The Members may appoint by ordinary resolution up to 12 Directors.

50A. Not used.

50B.The total number of Directors including the Principal if he/she so choose to act as Director under Article
57 who are employees of the Company shall not exceed one third of the total number of Directors.

PARENT DIRECTORS

53. Subject to Article 56A, the Parent Directors shall be elected by parents and individuals exercising parental
responsibility of registered pupils at the Academy. A Parent Director must be a parent, or an individual exercising
parental responsibility, of a registered pupil at the Academy at the time when he is elected.

56B .In appointing a Parent Director the Directors shall appoint a person who is the parent, or an individual

exercising parental responsibility, of a registered pupil at the Academy; or where it is not reasonably practical to
do so0, a person who is the parent of a child of above compulsory school age.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Organisational structure

The Academy together with its close links with Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies has a leadership
structure which consists of the governors, The Senior Leadership Team and Team Leaders. The aim of the leadership
structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels. The Headteacher is
the Accounting Officer.

The governors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, approving the
statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and other data, and making major decisions about
the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Senior Management Team are the Head Teacher, the Deputy Head Teacher and the Finance Director. These
leaders direct the Academy at an executive level implementing the policies laid down by the governors and
reporting back to them. The Senior Managers are responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed
budgets and the appointment of staff, though appointment boards for posts in the Senior Management Team always
contain a governor. Some spending control is devolved to members of the Senior Management Team, with limits
above which the Head Teacher must countersign.

Head Teacher and Deputy Head Teacher are responsible for the day to day operation of curriculum subject areas and
accordingly organise their teaching staff, resources, facilities and pupils.

Policies and Procedures for the Induction and training of Governors

The Academy has a Governor Recruitment and induction policy.

The training and induction provided for new governors includes a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff
and pupils. The Governor Support Team at the Local Authority provides external training including financial
matters. They provide regular updates on practice, legislation and guidance. All governors are provided with copies
of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake
their role as governors.

Arrangement for setting pay and remuneration of key management

1. Performance pay review is completed by Llangrove pay review committee, made up of Board members.

2. Performance Management in each school takes place on an annual cycle of review. It is undertaken by the
senior leaders, Deputy Head teachers and Headteacher.

3. Targets are related to current school key areas as well as individual targets and are linked to the teacher
standards.

4,  Staff underperforming are given clear agreed targets with appropriate timescale for review, and a mentor
from the leadership team.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Academy has strong collaborative links with Lord Scudamore Academy as well as other schools in Hereford
Marches Federation of Academies.

Related Party Relationships have been recorded on a Register of Director's Declarations of Interest and any additional
declarations noted at the start of each Board of Directors Meeting. Details of related party transactions can be found
in the notes to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
Insofar as the governors are aware;

- there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's Auditor is unaware; and

the governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Page 14
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Report of the Governors
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

P Boulton (Chair) - Governor
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Llangrove C E Academy

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Llangrove C E Academy has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement of loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The board of the governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Llangrove
C E Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of
governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The Trustees consider that the Board and its Committees combined, meet adequately and regularly over the course
of the year in order to discharge their responsibilities and have robust and effective management arrangements.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance . included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the
Statement of Governors' responsibilities. The Full Governing Body has formally met 3 times during the period. The
Finance Committee has also formally met a further 3 times during the period. These meetings also covered Finance
and staffing agendas. Attendance during the period at meetings of the Governing Body was as follows:

Governor Meeting Attendance

Members attend the AGM on an annual basis.

Meetings Out of a
Governor Attended Possible
S Dean Headteacher 3 3
P Boulton Church Governor/Chair 3 3
B Bentham Foundation Governor 2 3
G Sinkowski Parent Governor 3 3
B Green Parent Governor 1 3
M Griffin Foundation Governor 2 3
E Fox Staff Governor 3 3
J Deloyde Finance Officer 3 3

Finance Committee Meeting Attendance is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body and it's meetings cover the
finance and staffing agendas. The Finance Committee monitor and plan for the Academies financial position and
financial control systems. It is key to ensuring the governing body discharges its financial responsibilities correctly
and that the Academy remains financi ally viable at all times

Meetings Out of a
Governor Attended Possible
P Boulton Board Chair apt. 3 3
S Dean Accounting Officer 3 3
G Sinkowski Finance Chair 3 3
J Deloyde Finance Officer 3 3
E Fox Staff Governor 1 3

The Board understands it needs to appoint more members and trustees, however this seems to be a problem in many
schools nationwide. Due to the additional difficulty in appointing Church Members the board are working with the
Diocese to change the "Appointment of Governors' within our Articles of Association.

The Trust performs an important role in advancing education in the public benefit. There is an annual review of the
skill-set of the governors to ensure a broad range of knowledge/expertise is represented as well as regular CPD
opportunities.

At each board meeting the trustees are presented with data from the 'Headteacher Report’ as well as the finance
reports. This enables the trustees to analyse the data to help identify the reasons behind success and establish the
“root causes” behind any problems or failures.

Conflicts of Interest

All Members and Trustees make an annual Declaration of Interests. Any changes during the course of the year are
notified in a new Declaration of Interests.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

For Members, the annual declaration is completed at the Trust's Annual General Meeting. For Trustees, the annual
declaration is made at their first meeting of the academic year and revisited at each subsequent meeting to ensure
changes are declared.

Governance Review
The Academy annually reviews the skills set of the Governors to ensure a broad range of knowledge/expertise is
represented.

The academy trust on an annual basis should:

- Describe the evaluation or review that has been undertaken during the year on the impact and
effectiveness of the board of trustees, including any external review of governance

- Describe the findings, any actions- taken and the impact they had

- Indicate when the academy trust intends to conduct its next self-evaluation or external review of
governance.

- Configuration of the Trustees and Members will be reviewed during the early part of the new financial year, with
guidance being sought from the ESFA.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer the Headteacher, S Dean, has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the
taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for
money during the year by:

HMFA have a legally bound connection with Llangrove and the other schools and academies in the Federation. We
are able to minimise costs by the sharing of resources, staff, vehicles and combining pupil extra-curricular activities.

- We purchase services as a group to obtain discount and best rate. Examples of this are for Professional services,
Advertising, IT licences, IT software.

As an academy we regularly look at our services and contracts to check if they need to be appraised or
renegotiated to get the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the least cost. We continue to utilise the valuable
people and skills we already have working in the Federation enabling us to make a further saving.

- Wherever possible we request annual service charges to be invoiced to us on a monthly/quarterly basis so that the
cost can be evenly spread over the financial year to minimise impact on cash flow. Bank reconciliations are
performed on a monthly basis to monitor cash flow.

We adopt best practice in terms of prudence and financial management. Where possible a tender process is
undertaken for any supplies or services over an agreed amount, this has driven down costs so as to obtain value for
money.

The Academy Trust has continued to develop procedures for assessing need, and obtaining goods and services which
provide "best value” in terms of suitability, efficiency, time and cost.

- We continue to buy the Academy's heating oil within a local "oil syndicate” as a bulk order giving a considerable
saving each year of up to £300. This is also saving time as it is organised by a local villager who sources the best price
and arranges delivery on our behalf.

- Once again staff sickness insurance was considered for 2023 - 2024 however we have used the Schools Advisory
Service for the past few years. We find them very effective, the website is easy to update and access for
information. They are always helpful on the phone if you need support. Also as part of the HMFA group we receive a
10% discount on our policy. Other quotes were sourced from other companies but were more costly than our existing
provider.

- The Academy continues to opt in to the IHLI scheme (ill health liability insurance) after the report in 2021 from S
Elwine who is a professional in pension fund management. The report outlined the potential financial risks in regards
to additional deficit liability in the LGPS if an employee has to retire through ill-health as they would be granted
enhanced benefits which could result in a material increase in pension contributions. The IHLI scheme is partly
offset by reduced Er contributions.

- This year the trust subscribed to the DFE's Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA) which is an alternative to commercial
insurance for the Academy Trust. The RPA covers a broad spectrum of assets and risks, including trustee and
governance liability at a cost of £23 per student which is deducted from the General Annual Grant (GAG). For 23/24
the cost of the RPA was £1,748. Saving over £500.

Estate Management

This year as part of the DfE 2nd Condition Data Collection (CDC2) we had a site visit in April to collect building and
management information. In September 2024 we received the CDC2 School Condition Report which is highlighting
maintenance/repairs or replacement of various elements including replacement of; electrical distribution panel,
heating automatic control systems, fire alarm systems are our first priority.
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In addition, a Building Condition Report took place by Educational Property Services in 2022 which suggested a total
cost of £132,500 would be required to complete the repairs and maintenance recommended.

Other risks identified this year continue to be the condition of the external windows and fire exits. As we are an old
school, a number of our windows are still single glazed and therefore have compromised security, cause
condensation and damp issues, enable heat loss and effects the energy efficiency of the building.

Last year we applied for a CIF bid for new fire doors, windows and fire alarm system. Unfortunately, we were
unsuccessful despite offering a significant contribution. Therefore identified risks/maintenance and repairs will need
to come from our revenue reserves as far as possible in priority order.

In 2024-2025 security fencing around the lower part the school field perimeter will be a priority as we are aware of
the aging hedge and fencing. We therefore plan to go to tender early in the Autumn 2024 term for the costing of
similar security fencing to the front of the school

The Academy continues to use the services of the Education Property Partnership who annually reviews the condition
of the premises, manages property service contracts, provides technical advice and support including obtaining
tenders and preparation of any CIF bid.

Mr Morehead continues to be our Health & Safety and Asset Manager providing support including; risk assessments,
Legionella testing and recording, assist with maintenance, project etc.

Specific building/estates projects
- Playing field security fencing.

- Electrical upgrade.

- Fire Alarm System.

- ICT Infrastructure.

External Auditor Service Review

Academy Trusts should re-tender their external audit services at least every 5 years. This exercise was carried out
in February 2023. Out of the 6 accountancy firms contacted only one would quote, which was nearly double the cost
that Thorne Widgery charge. One company would not quote for a Single Academy Trust. Others would only quote for
their local area or did not offer this service. Others did not reply.

The outcome of this review show Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd are favourable and offer excellent value for
money. The Trust also put great value on their education sector expertise, locality and proven track record of
excellent customer service in particular communication, support and advice.

The Academy appoints external auditors annually at the AGM.

Procurement
Best practice scrutiny of quotes and pricing by the Finance Department, ensuring best value for money is obtained at
all times by sourcing and suggesting alternative suppliers and products where necessary, securing discounts.

The Trust has also ensured that staff are aware of supply shortages and considerable cost increases so they are
careful in their usage and avoid wastefulness.

Additional rental income is generated by rental to Llangrove Leapfrogs. This onsite pre-school generates each vyear,
rental is on a daily basis for most of the year, including school holidays. It provides wrap-around care as well as
offering holiday clubs. We also promote the use of our school premises for lettings which includes Christ Church and
Parish Councils. This now generates another small extra income.
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THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of charitable company policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Llangrove C E Academy for the period
1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The board of governors has reviewed the key risks to which the charitable company is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
governors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
charitable company's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
board of governars.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation. of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Governing Body.
regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

- identification and management of risks.

Llangrove C E Academy internal scrutiny
The governing body has decided to buy-in internal scrutiny audit service from "Academy Audit”.

The internal reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial systems as described above. They report to the board of trustees on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares an
annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and
conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

Llangrove Board opt for an annual bought-in internal audit service to provide independent assurance to the board
that its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating effectively, as required
by the Academy Trust Handbook. The function of the audit & risk committee is combined with the finance
committee who direct the trust's programme of internal scrutiny to ensure risks are being addressed appropriately.
This year two scopes of work were undertaken; Finance - Wages Testing, Non-Finance - Governance Risk Register.
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the period in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the Internal reviewer;

- the work of the external auditor;

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

- the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

CONCLUSION
Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of governors is of the
opinion that the charity has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ...... Lbhz,lw ........................ and signed on its
behalf by:

S Dean - Accounting Officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

As accounting officer of Llangrove C E Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify the charitable company
board of governors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement between the charitable company and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the charitable company board of governors are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the charitable company, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the charitable company's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered to
date have been notified to the board of governors and ESFA. If any instances are identified after the date of this

statement, these will be notiﬁ}dp«r board of governors and ESFA.
Qe \b@/w‘m
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Llangrove C E Academy

Statement of Governors' Responsibilities
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The governors (who act as trustees of Llangrove C E Academy and are also the directors of the charitable company
for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Governors and the financial
statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including
the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the
governors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

In so far as the governors are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and
- the governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on .

the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ....! i EJL\ LW, and signed on its
behalf by:

P Boulton (Chair) - Governor
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Llangrove C E Academy

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Llangrove C E Academy (the ‘charitable company’) for the year ended
31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information
The governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Governors for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the Report of the Governors has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Governors.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:
adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the governors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to
prepare a Strategic Report or in preparing the Report of the Governors.

Responsibilities of governors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Governors' Responsibilities, the governors (who are also the directors of
the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the governors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the governors are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the governors either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Llangrove C E Academy

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to both the Academy itself and the
sector in which it operates. We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a
material effect on the financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with the trustees and
other management. The most significant were identified as the Department for Education, the Education and Schools
Funding Agency, the Academies Financial Handbook 2023, the Academies Accounts Direction 2024, Companies Act
legislation and Charities Act and FRS102 SORP legislation.

We considered the extent of compliance with those laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statements. Our audit procedures included:

- Making enquiries of management as to where they consider there to be a susceptibility to fraud and whether they
have any knowledge or suspicion of fraud;

- Obtaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations;

- Assessing the design effectiveness of the controls in place to prevent and detect fraud;
- Assessing the risk of management override including identifying and testing journal entries;
- Challenging the assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates.

Whilst our audit did not identify any significant matters relating to the detection of irregularities including fraud,
and despite the audit being planned and conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK), there remains an unavoidable risk
that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected owing to inherent limitations of the
audit, and that by their very nature, any such instances of fraud or irregularity would likely involve collusion,
forgery, intentional misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

The maintenance and integrity of the Llangrove C E Academy website is the responsibility of the governors; the work
carried out by the auditors does not involve the consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially
presented on the website.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report. of
the Independent Auditors.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Llangrove C E Academy

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

/\,’ Aeve
Mrs Lisa Weaver FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
2 Wyevale Business Park
Kings Acre
Hereford
Herefordshire
HR4 7BS
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to.
Llangrove C E Academy and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Llangrove C E Academy
during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Llangrove C E Academy and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Llangrove C E Academy and the ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Llangrove Academy and the ESFA, for our work, for this report,
or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Llangrove CE Academy's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Llangrove CE Academy's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring
that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that
the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more tlimited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
charitable company's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions includes:

- detailed testing of a sample of items of income and expenditure to ensure appropriately applied for the purpose
intended.

- specific testing, on a sample basis, of system controls relevant to the above

- a general review of correspondence with the appropriate authorities regarding Academy governance matters
during the year

- a general review and discussion of the Academy's internal control procedures for establishing and maintaining
systems of control and documentation regarding these matters.

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the conduct of that
audit supports the regularity conclusion.

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Statement of Financial Activities
(Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

31.8.24 31.8.23
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
Unrestricted Asset General Total Total
funds Fund Fund funds funds
as restated
Notes £ £ £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM
Donations and capital grants 2 1,863 4,889 14,063 20,815 31,031
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's
educational operations 3 599,997 599,997 578,450
Other trading activities 4 7,350 - 50 7,400 7,290
Investment income 5 125 - - 125 18
Total 9,338 4,889 614,110 628,337 616,789
EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities
Academy's educational
operations 7 1,173 16,104 573,745 591,022 612,938
Transfer from Local Authority
on conversion - 646,242
Total 1,173 16,104 573,745 591,022 1,259,180
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 8,165 (11,215) 40,365 37,315 (642,391)
Transfers between funds 17 - 4,024 (4,024) - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit schemes 28,000 28,000 72,000
Net movement in funds 8,165 (7,191) 64,341 65,315 (570,391)
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward
As previously reported 32,595 699,877 39,411 771,883 707,172
Prior year adjustment 12 (635,102) (635,102) -
As restated 32,595 64,775 39,411 136,781 707,172
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD 40,760 57,584 103,752 202,096 136,781

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 31



Llangrove C E Academy (Registered number: 08333208)

Balance Sheet
31 August 2024

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Notes £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13 48,909 64,776
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 14 18,166 20,541
Cash at bank and in hand 181,496 163,410
199,662 183,951
CREDITORS -
Amounts falling due within one year 15 (34,475) (73,946)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 165,187 110,005
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 214,096 174,781
PENSION LIABILITY 18 (12,000) (38,000)
NET ASSETS 202,096 136,781
FUNDS 17
Restricted funds:
Restricted Pension Fund (12,000) (38,000)
General Annual Grant 115,752 77,410
DfE/YPLA Capital Grants 29,918 18,710
Fixed Assets funded by other grants/donation 27,666 46,066
161,336 104,186
Unrestricted funds:
Unrestricted Fund 40,760 32,595
TOTAL FUNDS 202,096 136,781

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Governors and authorised for issue
ON ceverennns \ b&l’l—“—k\: .................... and were signed on its behalf by:

P Boulton (Chair) - Governor

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Llangrove C E Academy

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 1

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/EFA

Interest received

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in
the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the reporting period

31.8.24

13,072

13,072

4,889
125

5,014

18,086

163,410

181,496

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.8.23
as restated
£
34,482

34,482

(42,953)
16,268
18

(26,667)

7,815

155,595

163,410



Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1.

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the

Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation charges

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion

Interest received

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions

Net cash provided by operations

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

Net cash
Cash at bank and in hand

Total

31.8.24

37,315

15,867
(4,889)

(125)
2,375
(39,471)

2,000

13,072

At 1.9.23 Cash flow
£ £

163,410 18,086

163,410 18,086

163,410 18,086

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.8.23
as restated
£

(642,391)

11,878
(16,268)
646,242
(18)
(6,344)
39,383
2,000

34,482

At 31.8.24
£

181,496
181,496

181,496



Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January
2019)', Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland’, the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Llangrove C E Academy meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. The governors make this assessment in respect of a period of one year from the
date of approval of the financial statements. The governors have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The trustees have considered the impact of the current economic climate on the future finances of the
academy.

The Academy's current level of reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds)
is £40,760 (2023: £32,595) all of which is free reserves. The level of general restricted reserves is £115,752
(2023: £77,410).

The Trustees are currently reviewing the financial position of the Academy to ensure it has a surplus on free
reserves in the medium to long term, and the Trustees assume that the Academy will be able to continue as a
going concern.

The Trustee's assessment that is appropriate to use the going concern assumption is based on the following:
a) the Academy has adequate cash to fund its working capital requirements during this period;

b) there is no significant unbudgeted expenditure or capital expenditure, unless supported by

additional funding, during this period; and

¢) income is received in line with the forecast

On this basis the Trustees have. concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the
funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.
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Ltangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Grants

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the charity which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it
is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income
Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
charity has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘lncome from other trading
activities' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements
until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement
and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis
and has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be
directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the
use of resources.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the charity's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the charity apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets
The fixed asset capitalisation policy states that assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed
assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful lives, as follows:
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 15-20% per annum
ICT equipment 33 1/3% per annum

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until
they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

Land and buildings are not revalued.

Due to revised guidance issued by the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Church of England
Dioceses, the academy decided, that it is no longer appropriate to recognise the land and buildings on the
balance sheet, so this was removed in the year ended 31 August 2024. The academy occupies the school site
under a Church Supplement Agreement with the Hereford Diocese Board of Education which gives the
academy permission to occupy the site only. The Diocese Board of Education can give the academy a two year
notice period to terminate the agreement and to be vacated from the site. Alternative accounting treatment
would be to include a notional donation for a rolling two year period, however this has not been included in
the financial statements as the academy do not believe it is financial viable to derive this value.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probabte that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or
services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,
discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settiement has
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial
instrument.

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1, Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a Charitable Company for UK corperation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(“TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’}. These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.TPS is an unfunded
scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with
the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multiemployer scheme
with no underlying assets to assign between employers. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they
relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used
to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in the pension note, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at the year end. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Capital grants - 4,889 4,889 16,268
School trips etc 1,513 13,528 15,041 13,535
Grants and donations 350 535 885 1,228
1,863 18,952 20,815 31,031
All of the figures included in the comparatives related to restricted funds.
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
Capital Grant 4,889 16,268
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

3.

FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

31.8.24
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
£ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant(GAG) - 489,328 489,328
Other DfE/EFSA grants
Pupil premium - 32,012 32,012
Universal infant free school meals - 11,537 11,537
Teachers' pay - 7,989 7,989
Teachers' pension - 4,100 4,100
PE and sports - 16,690 16,690
Other DfE/EFSA grants - 4,055 4,055
Supplementary funding - 15,800 15,800
.- 581,511 581,511
Other Government grant
Local Authority funding - 18,486 18,486
599,997 599,997
All of the figures included in the comparatives related to restricted funds.
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
31.8.24
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
£ £ £
Hire of facilities/Other trading income 7,350 50 7,400

31.8.23
as restated
Total
funds
£

453,985

29,135
10,303

16,640
23,862

533,925

44,525

578,450

31.8.23
as restated
Total
funds
£
7,290

The comparatives include £5,466 of unrestricted funds and £166 of restricted funds, giving a total of £5,632.

INVESTMENT INCOME

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
£ £
Deposit account interest 125 -

All of the figures included in the comparatives related to unrestricted funds.
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Total

funds
£

125

31.8.23
as restated
Total
funds
£
18
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

6. EXPENDITURE

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Non-pay expenditure
Staff Other
costs Premises costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs 257,208 135 56,853 314,196 280,022
Allocated support costs 184,512 25,856 66,458 276,826 332,916
441,720 25,991 123,311 591,022 612,938
Transfer from Local
Authority on conversion : - - - 646,242
441,720 25,991 123,311 591,022 1,259,180
Net income/{expenditure} is stated after charging/(crediting):
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
Auditors remuneration 9,260 7,217
Other non-audit services 894 835
Depreciation - owned assets 15,867 11,879
7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Direct costs 178 314,018 314,196 280,022
Support costs 995 275,831 276,826 332,916
1,173 589,849 591,022 612,938
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Total Total
£ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 184,512 227,489
Depreciation 15,732 11,743
Administrative supplies 8,974 8,003
Premises costs 25,856 34,247
Other support costs 31,598 43,382
Governance costs 10,154 8,052
Total support costs 276,826 332,916
All of the figures included in the comparatives related to restricted funds.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

8. STAFF COSTS AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

31.8.24 31.8.23

as restated
£ £

Wages and salaries 333,948 339,384
Social security costs 23,060 22,022
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 81,686 83,940
438,694 445,346

Supply teacher costs 3,026 -
441,720 445,346

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the charitable company
during the year was as follows:

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
Teachers 4 5
Administration and Support 11 12
Management 1 1
16 18

No employees received emoluments in excess of £60,000.

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions)
received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £167,691 (2023:
£158,726).

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with
the academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services

they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

S Dean (staff governor): Remuneration £45,000 - £50,000 (2023: £45,000 - £50,000)
Employers Pension
Contributions £10,000 - £15,000 (2023: £10,000 - £15,000)
E Fox (staff governor): Remuneration £45,000 - £50,000 (2023: £40,000 - £45,000)
Employers Pension
Contributions £10,000- £15,000 (2023: £5,000 - £10,000)

Remuneration for governors appointed and resigning during the year are only stated for the period the
individual was acting as a governor.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in the notes to the financial statements.
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

10.

11.

GOVERNORS' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Governors
and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy
business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the period ended

31 August 2024 was £35 (2023: £35).

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's educational
operations

Other trading activities
Investment income

Total

EXPENDITURE ON

Charitable activities

Academy's educational operations
Transfer from Local Authority on conversion
Total

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)

Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit schemes
Net movement in funds

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

Restricted
Fixed Restricted
Unrestricted Asset General Total
funds Fund Fund funds
as restated
£ £ £ £
2,378 16,267 12,386 31,031
- 578,450 578,450
7,290 7,290
18 18
9,686 16,267 590,836 616,789
1,095 20,496 591,347 612,938
- 646,242 646,242
1,095 666,738 591,347 1,259,180
8,591 (650,471) (511) (642,391)
- 33,474 (33,474) -
72,000 72,000
8,591 (616,997) 38,015 (570,391)
24,004 681,773 1,395 707,172
32,595 64,776 39,410 136,781
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Llangrove C E Academy

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
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12. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT
During the year the academy has revised the guidance issued by the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
and the Church of England Dioceses, the academy has decided that it is no longer appropriate to recognise

the land and buildings on the balance sheet. See accounting policies for further details.

13.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
and
fittings
£
COST
At 1 September 2023 and 31 August 2024 122,335
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2023 57,559
Charge for year 15,867
At 31 August 2024 73,426
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2024 48,909
At 31 August 2023 64,776
14. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
VAT 433 5,872
Prepayments and accrued income 17,733 14,669
18,166 20,541
15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
Trade creditors 2,242 18,851
Social security and other taxes 14,575 16,513
Other creditors 104 -
Accruals and deferred income 17,554 38,582
34,475 73,946
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15.  CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR - continued

31.8.24 31.8.23
£ £
Deferred Income at 1 September 6,489 11,718
Resources deferred in the year 12,551 6,489
Amounts released from previous years (6,489) (11,718)

Deferred Income at 31 August 12,551 6,489

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for Universal Infant Free
School Meal grant relating to the Autumn 2024 term totalling £6,730. As well as other trivial amounts
including amounts to be repaid to the ESFA and an overpayment of local authority income to be repaid.

16.  ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

31.8.24
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
Unrestricted Asset General Total
funds Fund Fund funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed assets 977 47,932 - 48,909
Current assets 39,783 9,652 150,227 199,662
Current liabilities - - (34,475) (34,475)
Pension liability » - - (12,000) (12,000)
40,760 57,584 103,752 202,096

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

31.8.23

as restated
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
Unrestricted Asset General Totat
funds Fund Fund funds
£ £ £ £

Fixed assets 1,814 62,962 - 64,776

Current assets 30,781 27,645 125,525 183,951
Current liabilities - (25,831) (48,115) (73,946)
Pension liability - - (38,000) (38,000)

32,595 64,776 39,410 136,781
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17.  MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Prior Net Transfers
year movement between At
At1.9.23 adjustment in funds funds 31.8.24
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
Restricted Pension Fund (38,000} - 26,000 - (12,000)
General Annual Grant 77,411 - 42,365 (4,024) 115,752
DfE/YPLA Capital Grants 18,709 - (980) 12,189 29,918
Conversion and
depreciation 635,102 (635,102)
Fixed Assets funded by
other grants/donation 46,066 - (10,235) (8,165) 27,666
739,288 (635,102) 57,150 - 161,336
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted Fund 32,595 - 8,165 - 40,760
TOTAL FUNDS 771,883 (635,102) 65,315 - 202,096

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
Restricted Pension Fund - (2,000) 28,000 26,000
General Annual Grant 489,324 {446,959) 42,365
Other Restricted 32,603 (32,603) -
Other DfE/ESFA Grants 17,716 (17,716) -
DfE/YPLA Capital Grants 4,890 (5,870) (980)
Fixed Assets funded by other
grants/donation (1) (10,234) - (10,235)
Other DFE/ESFA Pupil premium 32,012 (32,012) - -
Other DFE/ESFA Universal infant free
school meals 11,537 (11,537)
Other DFE/ESFA Teachers' pay 7,989 (7,989)
Other DFE/ESFA Teachers' pension 4,100 (4,100)
Other DFE/ESFA PE and sports 16,690 (16,690)
Other DFE/ESFA Recovery Premium 2,139 (2,139)
618,999 (589,849) 28,000 57,150
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted Fund 9,338 (1,173) - 8,165
TOTAL FUNDS 628,337 (591,022) 28,000 65,315
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17. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Comparatives for movement in funds

Net Transfers
movement between At
At 1.9.22 in funds funds 31.8.23
£ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
Restricted Pension Fund (108,000) 70,000 - (38,000)
General Annual Grant 109,395 1,489 (33,474) 77,410
DfE/YPLA Capital Grants 13,639 5,071 - 18,710
Conversion and depreciation 646,242 (646,242) - -
Fixed Assets funded by other
grants/donation 21,892 (9,300) 33,474 46,066
683,168 (578,982) - 104,186
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted Fund 24,004 8,591 - 32,595
TOTAL FUNDS 707,172 (570,391) - 136,781
Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:
Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
Restricted Pension Fund - (2,000) 72,000 70,000
General Annual Grant 453,984 (452,495) - 1,489
Other Restricted 56,910 (56,910) - -
Other DfE/ESFA Grants 22,014 (22,014) - -
DfE/YPLA Capital Grants 16,268 (11,197) - 5,071
Conversion and depreciation = (646,242) - (646,242)
Fixed Assets funded by other
grants/donation (1) (9,299) - (9,300)
Other DFE/ESFA Pupil premium 29,135 (29,135) -
Other DFE/ESFA Universal infant free
school meals 10,303 (10,303) - -
Other DFE/ESFA PE and sports 16,641 (16,641) - -
Other DFE/ESFA Recovery Premium 1,849 (1,849)
607,103 (1,258,085) 72,000 (578,982)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted Fund 9,686 (1,095) - 8,591
TOTAL FUNDS 616,789 (1,259,180) 72,000 (570,391)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

- General Annual Grant (GAG): Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy
was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at the year end.
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17.

18.

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

- Other DfE/ESFA Grants: are utilised for the purposes intended by the donor.

- Other Restricted General Funds: include payments made towards Academy trips.

- The Pension Fund: is the surplus/(deficit) in the Local Government Pension Scheme.

- Restricted Fixed Asset Funds: include the fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy, capital
grants, additions and depreciation.

- Unrestricted Funds: are all those income and expenses for general use in the Academy.

Transfers between funds

During the year transfers between funds have been made to correct fixed asset fund values.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The charity's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for

non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £18,722 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £18,953) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' pension scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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18.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
Valuation of the teachers’ pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set
by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of the
valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). This
is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in member
benefits is needed.

- Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £49,130 (2023 - £38,975).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The charity
is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the charity has
taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it
were a defined contribution scheme. The charity has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £34,554 (2023 - £47,435), of which
employer's contributions totalled £27,103 (2023 - £37,878). and employees' contributions totalled £7,451
(2023 - £9,557). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.20 per cent for employers and 5.50 per
cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by

the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

On 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a
parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

As the scheme is in deficit, the academy has entered into an agreement with the trustees to make additional
contributions in additional to normal funding levels.

The contributions payable will be starting at £5,870 for the year 2023/24, increasing for the years 2024/25
and 2025/26.

The current estimated recovery period is 18 years.
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18.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of unfunded obligations
Deficit

Net liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost

Net interest from net defined benefit
asset/liability

Past service cost

Actual return on plan assets

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Contributions by scheme participants
Interest cost

Actuarial losses/(gains)

Benefits paid

Gains/Loss on Assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions
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Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.24 31.8.23

as restated
£ £

(471,000) (421,000)
459,000 383,000
(12,000) (38,000)
(12,000) (38,000)
(12,000) (38,000}

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
23,000 43,000
23,000 17,000
46,000 60,000
(1,000)

|

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £

421,000 425,000

23,000 43,000

7,000 10,000

23,000 17,000

1,000 26,000
(15,000) (1,000)
11,000 (87,000)
(12,000)

471,000 421,000
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18.  PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest on plan assets

Contributions by employer

Contributions by scheme participants
Actuarial gains/(losses)

Benefits paid

Assets no descr

Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income)

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions

Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income)

Actuarial gains/(losses)

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
383,000 317,000
21,000 15,000
33,000 44,000
7,000 10,000
- (1,000)
(15,000) (1,000)
- (1,000)
30,000
459,000 383,000

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
- 12,000
30,000 -
- 72,000
30,000 84,000

The major categories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds - Other
Cash/liquidity
Property
Other
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Defined benefit
pension ptans

31.8.24 31.8.23

as restated
£ £

307,000 281,000

37,000 9,000

- 3,000

110,000 31,000

5,000 59,000

459,000 383,000
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18.  PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated

Discount rate 5.00% 5.40%
Future salary increases 4.15% 4.30%
Future pension increases 2.65% 2.90%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.00% 2.80%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

Males 21.2 21.5
Females 23.6 23.8
Retiring in 20 years

Males 22.5 22.8
Females 25.4 25.6

Sensitivity analysis

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
Discount rate +0.1% (9,000) (6,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 9,000 6,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 19,000 8,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (19,000) (8,000)
CPl rate +0.1% 8,000 6,000
CPlrate -0.1% (8,000) (6,000)
19. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no significant contingent liabilities that the Governors are aware of.
20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £

Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements
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21.

22.

LONG-TERM COMMITMENTS, INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31.8.24 31.8.23
as restated
£ £
Within one year 733 732
Between one and five years 1,648 2,381
2,381 3,113

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the charitable company and the composition of the board of governors being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
the governors have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

The following related party transactions took place in the period of account.
The Hereford Marches Federation of Academies:
- During the year expenditure of £38,237 (2023: £28,501) was paid to The Hereford Marches Federation of
Academies. £Nil (2023: £19,000) related to central staffing services.
- At the year end £nil was due to The Hereford Marches Federation of Academies (2023: £nil).
Transactions with other federation academies:
HMFA Enterprises, a subsidiary company of Hereford Marches Federation of Academies.
During the year income of £Nil (2023: £Nil) was received from HMFA Enterprises
During the year expenditure of £Nil (2023: £21,016) was paid to HMFA Enterprises. This expenditure was
- inrelation to the provision of school meals to Llangrove CE Academy.
- At the year end £Nil was due to HMFA Enterprises (2023: £2,744).
All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and

obtaining their approval where required, and with the charitable company's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.
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